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Independent Auditors' Report

The Honorable Chairman and
Members of the Board of Trustees
Warren County Community College
Washington, New Jersey

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying basic financial statements of the Warren County Community College
(the “College) a component unit of the County of Warren, as of and for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2021
and 2020, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the College’s basic
financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
i P 'y

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our
audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Govermment Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States, and audit requirements as prescribed by the Office of Management
and Budget, Department of the Treasury, State of New Jersey. Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selecied depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In malking those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the College’s preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, hut not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the College’s internal
control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinions.
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Opinions

In our opinjon, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Warren County Community College, in the County of Warren, as of June 30, 2021 and 2020,
and the respective changes in financial position, and cash flows thereof for the fiscal years then ended in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s
discussion and analysis, which follows this report, and the pension and post-employment benefits schedules
and the related notes be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although
not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board
who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an
appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the
required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the
information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries,
the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial
statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited
procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the College’s basic financial statements. The accompanying schedules of expenditures of federal
and state awards, as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal dwards; and New Jersey’s OMB
Circular 15-08, Single Audit Policy for Recipients of Federal Grants, State Grants and State Aid, are
presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements.

The accompanying schedules of expenditures of federal and state awards are the responsibility of
nanagement and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used
to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures
applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing
and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the
basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the
schedules of expenditures of federal and state awards are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to
the basic financial statements as a whole.
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Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated January 21, 2022
on our consideration of the College’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of faws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters.
The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of
the College’s internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an
audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the College’s internal
control over financial reporting and compliance.

Mt. Arlington, New Jersey : /\J IDVDOLAD LL)O

January 21, 2022

NISIVOCCIA LLP



FY21 MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

This Management Discussion and Analysis (MD & A) of Warren County Conununity Coliege's
(“College” or “WCCC”) financial performance provides an overall review of the College's
financial activities for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021. The intent of this discussion and
analysis is to look at the College's financial performance as a whole; readers also should review
the financial statements, the notes to the financial statements and any management
recommendations (o enhance their understanding of the College's financial performance. This
document is prepared by WCCC and represents management’s interpretation of the financial data.

Overview of the Financial Statements
The College’s audit is prepared under the standards prescribed by the Governmental Accounting

Standards Board (GASB), which sets guidelines for financial reports prepared for public entities.
The financial statements prescribed by GASB incorporate three statements:

e Statement of Net Position
. Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
. Statement of Cash Flows

These statements, which follow in the presentation, demonstrate the net value of assets and the
results of the College’s operations, respectively, on a coliege-wide basis. All statements are
prepared using the accrual basis of accounting similar to the accounting used by most
private-sector comipanies. This basis of accounting takes into account all of the current year's
revenues and expenses regardless o’ when cash is received or paid. The audit performed by
Nisivoccia LLP also includes a series of notes to accompany the financial data, and an audit of
federal awards and state financial assistance, which is required by both federal and state entities.

Net Pension Liabilities and OPEB Costs

Beginning in FY2015, GASB 68 required public entities to reflect future pension liabilities in its
financial statements. In addition GASE 75 went into effect in FY2018. This required insitutions
to record the post employment benefit expense for WCCC employees.

Warren County Comimunity College’s employees participate in either the Alternate Benefits
Program (ABP), which is a defined contribution plan and therefore has no future pension
obligations, or the Public Employees Retirement System (PERS), which is a defined benefit plan.
WCCC makes annual contributions for its PERS employees in acccordance with actuarial
estimates prepared for the NJ Division of Pensions and Benefits. In order to refiect potential future
pension liabilities in the College’s financial statements, the NJ Division of Pensions and Benefits
has provided public entities with data on these liabilities.

The State of NJ, rather than WCCC, is responsible for funding both OPEB and Pension expenses.
For purposes of more effectively reflecting the College’s financial position, this Management
Discussion and Analysis will exclude these expenses and liabilities in the discussion of the three
main components of the financial report.



Statement of Net Position: College Funds

The Statement of Net Position includes assets, liabilities, deferred inflows and outflows, and the
resulting net position of the College. WCCC’s assets are classified as either current or non-current
(capital) assets. Liabilities represent future commitments that the College has made that must be
recognized as a future expense. These liabilities can be either short-term or long-term.

The College’s net position is derived by calculating the difference between assets/deferred
outflows and liabilities/deferred in-flows. The net position indicates both capital assets and fund
assets. The WCCC Foundation holds a donated asset of real estate, the Foundation’s net position
represent fund assets only,

The chart below shows total and net position for the College (exclusive of its component unit, the
WCCC Foundation). The overall College net position as of June 30, 2021 exclusive of the state
GASB 68 liabilities, was $24.1 million. The overall College net position as of June 30, 2021,
inclusive of the GASB liabilities was $21.4 million.

Statement of Net Position: Excluding State GASB 68 (Rounded $000)

Total Assets EY21 FY20 Change
Current Assets 7,240 0,854 386
Capital Assets, net 18,141 18,736 (595)
Total Assets 25,381 25,591 (209)

Less Liabilities:

Current Liabilities 1,213 2,178 (965)
Non-Current Liabilities (College) 112 112 0
Total Liabilities 1,325 2,290 (965)
Net Position 24,056 23,300 756
Net Position {Excluding Pension}

Investment in Capital Assets , 18,141 18,736 (595)
Restricted 24 24 0
Unrestricted-Designated 4,683 3,385 1,298
Unrestricted-Undesignated 1,208 1,155 53
Total Net Position 24,056 23,300 756

In order to understand the College’s financial position, it is important to review each category of
the net position statement: current assets, capital assets, liabilities, deferred inflows, deferred
outflows and net position. The above chart does not include the net pension liabilities related to
College employees, which are required to be reported on a GAAP basis. These liabilities are the



responsibility of the State of NJ. The June 30, 2020 net pension liability attributed to WCCC
current and former employees was $2,923,077. Had the net pension and the related deferred
inflows and outflows for pensions been included in the chart above, the total net position would
have reduced the net position by $4,473,120. '

Current Assets

Current assets include cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, inventory and prepaid
expenses. As the chart on the prior page indicates, the College’s current assets increased to over
$7.24 million, a $386 thousand increase over the FY21 level. This change represents an increase
in cash due to Federal HEERF funds (referred hereafter as “COVID 19”) funds.

Capital Assets

Capital assets include facilities, building improvements, computers, furnishings and equipment
and fixtures. The College’s capital assets were just over $18.1 million by the end of FY21,
representing a slight decrease in net capital assets.

The change in capital assets by category is shown below.

Capital Assets (in $000)

1 Year
Asset Type FYz21 FY2¢  Change
Computers & Equipment 2,416 2,255 161
Furniture & Fixtures 1,715 1,715 5
Building Iinprovements 3,917 3,674 243
Building 23,455 23.455 0
Total 31,503 31,099 404
Less Accumulated
Depreciation (13.362)  (12,363) %99
Net Capital Assets 18,141 18.736 (595)

The change in computers and equipment primarily reflects the refresh of four computer classrooms
undertaken the summer of 2021, The increase in building improvements reflects the Community
Trail project, which was completed in September 2021. The book value of capital assets is reduced

annually by depreciation, which differs depending on the useful life of assets. The depreciation
for FY21 was just under § I million.

The value of capital assets is important for a number of institutions as they can be leveraged for
borrowing purposes (issuance of debt). However, in the case of WCCC, under state statute the
College is unable to issue bond funds. Bonds for WCCC may be issued by state or county
governments and certain public authorities.



Current Liabilities

Also displayed in the Statement of Net Position are liabilities. Liabilities may be current or non-
current (reflecting commitments to be realized in future years). Current liabilities include
upcoming salary and vendor payments for services already incurred during the fiscal year, as well
as unearned tuition and other revenue and an accrual to cover earned employee vacation time.
Current liabilities were $1.2 million at the end of FY21, over a $1.0 million decrease over the
FY20 liabilities. This decrease reflects the completion of two items from FY20 where funds were
set aside but not yet spent (HEERF funds expended and the replacement of the HVAC units
completed in summer 2020. The liability for employee vacation accrual increased by just over
$19,000. This increase reflects additional unspent vacation hours as.of June 30, 2021, due to travel
restrictions/stay at home orders due to COVID 19. The College has offered employees more
flexibility in FY22 to use accrued vacation time.

Long-Term Liabilities

The long-term liability of the College is the sick time and is actually an expense of the College.
This reflects potential sick-leave payouts for faculty members. WCCC offers a sick leave payout
of up to $8,000 for faculty who have served for ten years in a full-time position and have provided
one year’s advance notice of retirement. The total set aside for this liability for FY21 is $112,000,
representing the maximum allocation available for eligible employees.

Other long term liabilities reflected on the financial statements include the State of New Jersey net
pension liability. In order to indicate the College’s financial position, this MD & A statement
discusses the State of NJ liabilities separately.

Net Position

The College’s net position is total assets and deferred outflows less total liabilities and total
deferred inflows. Net position includes capital assets, such as buildings and equipment, as well as
non-capital assets (such as cash, investments, pre-payments and receivables). Non-capital net
position is classified on the next page as “restricted,” or “unrestricted.” Note the data and this
section does not include the NJ Pension liability, which will be discussed in a later section, or
WCCC Foundation funds,

The College’s net position in FY21 increased, in large part due to the receipt of additional COVID
19 funds. The federal government has allowed campuses to reimburse themselves for not. only
expenses, but also for lost revenue during this period. In addition, state COVID-19 funds were
received in FY21, to reimburse the college for expenses made since the pandemic was declared on
March 3, 2020. The net effect of these changes has been to allow the college to reimburse itself
for FY20 operating revenue loss and additional costs.



Unrestricted and Restricted Net Position (Rounded $000s)

FY21 FY20 Change
Unrestricted 1,208 1,155 53
Restricted
Academic Student Programming 16 16 0
Phillipsburg Reserve 430 430 0
Assessment/Operating Reserve 260 260 0
Phi Theta Kappa 28 28 0
Drone Project 200 1 199
Website Development 100 100 0
ADA Accommodations 100 100 0
Strategic Planning 229 200 29
County Grant Writing (Bond Act) 0 50 (50)
Computer Replacement Schedule 609 516 93
Capital Renewal and Replacement 333 233 100
Furnishing/Small Capital Projects 341 141 200
Roof Repairs 578 578 0
Recreation Fields 350 0 350
SOCF Match 600 0 600
Building Annex/Capital Reserve 509 732 223
Total Designated 4,683 3,385 1,298
Restricted 24 24 0

Unrestricted net position pertain to the aggregate of residual funds that are neither restricted nor
designated at this time. Note that in the combined Statement of Net Position, the categories of
designated and undesignated are combined together as “Unrestricted.” Unrestricted funds as of
June 30, 2021 increased slightly to $1,207,680, representing 13% of FY21 expenses (excluding
depreciation). This is slightly above the Board’s annual goal of maintaining a set-aside of
approximately 10% to 12% of expenses for contingency needs. This level is also in accordance
with the expectations of the College’s accreditor, the Middle State’s Commission on Higher
Education.

Designated funds represent resources allocated by the Board of Trustees for specific projects.
Designated funds as of June 30, 2021 were just over $4.6 million, an increase of $1.3 million. Of
this total, $1.1 million was for new projects. These include matching funds for the $1.6 million
Securing our Children’s Future Bond Act and funds for future recreation fields on lands previously
donated by the country. The college also anticipates several smaller projects (such robotics
equipment, furnishing replacements and the renewal of the original college restrooms).

The final component of net position is restricted net position. The funds in this category represent
resources held by the College on behalf of student clubs and organizations and the WWII &



Holocaust Grant. There was no change in this category as student clubs were inactive due to
COVID-19.

Statement of Net Position: WOCC Foundation

The WCCC Foundation (“Foundation”™) is considered a component unit of WCCC as the College’s
Board approves Foundation Board members and College employees oversee the operations of the
Foundation. The Statement of Net Position for the Foundation is shown below.

Statement of Net Position-WCCC Foundation

FY21 FY20 Change
Total Assets 1,915 1,138 777
Liabilities 17 18 (1)
Net Position 1,898 1,120 778
Net Position
Unrestricted 1,241 615 626
Restricted 657 505 152
Total Net Position 1,598 1,120 778

From FY20 to FY21, the net position of the Foundation increased by $778,088. Most of this
increase was in restricted contributions towards the Community Trail, which serves the Warren
County community and links Warren County Tech to the-College via a series of walking paths.

Restricted funds include both funds that have been designated and funds restricted by endowment
agreements. The remaining funds are unrestricted,

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Change in Net Position: Colleee Funds

The next statement in the financial report is the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in
Net Position (SRECNP). The SRECNP provides information about the College’s revenues and
expenses to explain key changes in the College’s financial position.

The SRECNP displays both operating and non-operating revenues. WCCC’s operating revenues
primarily are student revenues (tuition and fees) and government grants (primarily financial aid).
Non-operating revenues comprise state and local appropriations, including capital appropriations,

The SRECNP expenses for College funds (excluding Foundation and pension expenses) are shown
on the next page. Note that expenses include depreciation, which is not an operating cost.
Depreciation is recorded to indicate the potential aging of capital facilities (equipment, furniture
and fixtures, building improvements and buildings). Also, expenses do not include funds that have
been “capitalized,” meaning that they have been moved to capital assets.



Statement of Revenues, Expense and Changes in Net Position (College) ($000)

Operating Revenues
Student tuition and fees

Federal grants and contracts
State/ local grants and contracts
Other

Total Operating Revenues

Non-Opcrating Revenues
State appropriations

State ABP

County Operating

Capital

Misc./Investment Income
Total Non-Operating Revenues

Total Revenues
Total Expenses
Change in Net Position

Operating Revenues

Fy21

2,306
2,558
1,270

208
6,342

2,058
184
2,281

23
%
4,590
10,932
10,176

756

FY20

2,639
1,123
1,226

205
5,103

1,984
185
2,259

648
163
5,329
10,482
10,349

133

Change % Change
{333) -12.6%
1,435 127.6%

44 3.6%

3 1.5%
1,189 22.1%
74 3.7%
(1 -0.6%
22 0.9%
(625) -96.4%
(119} -73.0%
(649) ~-12.4%
450 4.3%
{173) -1.7%
623 213.48%

Total FY21 College operating revenues were 22.1% higher than the prior year revenues, with

variations in several categories, primarily grant funds.

Tuition and Fees

Tuition and fees were significantly reduced in FY21. Note that the SRECNP displays tuition and
fees by funding source. This means that Tuition and fee charges paid by state and federal financial
aid grant funds are categorized under state or federal grants. This means that if a student receives
financial aid to cover tuition and fees, the revenue is recorded as state or federal grant revenues,
rather than tuition and fees. The next display shows total (gross) tuition and fee revenues for FY21

vs. F'Y20.

Change in Tuition Revenues
(Rounded $000)

Credit Tuition and Fees

Non Credit-Tuition and Fees
Customized Training

Total

1 Year

FY21 FY20 Change
3,495 4,056 (s61)
126 274 (149)
24 26 (2)
4,356 3,644 (712)

Percentage
Change
~4.7%
-54.2%
-17.1%
-16.3%
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WCCC did not increase its tuition and fees for FY21, so the revenue change in this category reflects
a reduction in enrollments, which was experienced throughout higher education, but especially at
community colleges. During FY21, most classes at WCCC were held virtually (either in a remote
or a distance education format) due to COVID 19. The steep decline in non-credit revenues and
the lack of customized training revenues reflect the inability to offer many courses due to the
“pandemic restrictions (particularly any short-term health career programs). Because of the new
variants of COVID, it is likely that WCCC will once again face severe challenges in Continuing
Education and Customized Training,

Other Operating Revenues

Fortunately, for WCCC, the decrease in tuition and fee revenues were offset by several key federal
grant programs. During FY21 and FY22, the College is benefitting from the allocation federal
COVID grants (including those passed down through the state and those distributed directly to the
College). These revenues supported both the students and the institution. As a result, Federal
grants and contracts reflects a net increase of $1.4 million in FY21. Most of this is one-time
revenue that will disappear by FY?23.

State grant and contracts increased slightly, reflecting some increases and decreases in state
grants. There was a decrease in state financial aid (related largely to the enrollment decrease).
However, these decreases were offset by some COVID relief funds.

Other revenyes primarily reflect rental income.
Non-Operating Revenues

State and county appropriations, along with investment income, are classified as non-operating
revenue. As a public county college, WCCC relies on these annual subsidies to meet its operating
needs, as state and county funds normally account for nearly 45% of the College’s unrestricted
revenues. Because of federal COVID funds received in FY21, which inflated revenues and
expenses, the public appropriations accounted for 40% of revenues.

The County appropriation was $2,280,963 in FY21. The .9% increase from the prior year reflects
a 2020 increase in operating aid that covered part of FY?21.

The State appropriation of $2,057,963 represents a 3.5% increase, however, it is still below the
pre-pandemic level,

State Alternate Benefit Funding (ABP) is a reimbursement for state pension contributions for
eligible employees. These reimbursements are based on actual pension payments made by the
College on behalf of its educational employees into the ABP program.

Miscellaneous revenne includes testing fees, miscellaneous facility rental income and investment
income. FY20’s revenue included a one-time donation from the WCCC Foundation, which
explains the decrease in FY21.
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Capital Grants reflects the balance of funds for the GO Bond project. These funds were used to
construct the Building Annex.

Operating Expenses by Functional Spending Categories

Expenses related to the operation of the College can be displayed by the functional categories
unique to college and universities. The chart below shows expense by functional categories for
both FY21 and FY20. These expenses have been recorded afler capitalization, which means that
the capital expenses have been moved to capital assets. This presentation allows us to compare
operating expenses. Total FY21 expenses (exclusive of the NJ net pension liability) decreased by
2% from FY20 to FY21.

Expenses by Function ($000)

Category FY21 FY20 Change % Change
Instruction 3,160 3,377 (217 -6%
Institutional Support 1,868 1,999 (131) =%
Public Service 406 474 (68) -14%
Academic Support 1,261 1,192 69 6%
Physical Plant 1,018 1,109 (€2} -3%
Student Support 827 910 (83) -9%
Capital Expense 4 36 (32) -88%
Scholarships/Aid 590 178 412 232%
Depreciation/Deletions 1.041 1,074 (33) 3%
Total 10,176 10,349 173) -2%

Many of the changes in expenses in FY21 were related to a change in operations due to the
COVID-19 pandemic. Instruction expenses declined by 6% because of fewer course credit course
sections, but more importantly, the cessation of in-person continuing education courses. This also
explains the decrease in Public Service activities, which includes continuing education operational
activities. Most other activities of the college had reduced expenses, also related to COVID-19,
including Institutional Support, Student Services and Physical Plant.

Conversely, in FY21, there was a large increase in Scholarships/Financial assistance. This
reflects funds paid directly to students for COVID relief assistance. These expenses increased for
the Spring 2021 semester as the federal government loosened the restrictions on the use of COVID-
19 funds for students and institutions.

Note that data shown above does not include expenses required for GASB 68 (Pension) or GASB
75 (Other Post-Employment Benefits or OPEB) paid by the State of New Jersey. These are
included in the official schedules included in this Audit report. Because of the size of the state
expenses, they significantly distort the revenues and expenses of the College.
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Expenses by Natural Spending Categories
Expenses also can be categorized by “natural” groupings that reflect spending type. These
expenses for College funds (excluding State Pension Funds and the Foundation) are shown below.

This perhaps more clearly shows the impact of expenditure changes for FY21.

Expenses by Natural Category (Rounded $000)

Category Fy21 FY20 Change % Change
Employee Salaries 4,378 4,727 (348) -7%
Employee Fringe Benefits Ls50 1,705 (155) -9%
Employee Salaries & Benefits 5,928 6,432 (504) -8%

Non-Salaries

Materials and Supplies 635 044 (10) -1%
Services 399 445 (46) -10%
Computing/Equipment 793 634 159 25%
Utilities/Ins./Maintenance. 757 200 (143) -16%
Scholarships 380 178 412 231%
Other 29 37 (2) -8%
Subtotal, Non-Salaries 3,203 2,834 369 13%
Total, Operating Expenses 9,131 9,265 (135) -1%
Capital/Depreciation 1,045 1,084 39 -4%
Total Expenses 10,176 10,349 (173) ~2%

Reviewing the expenses by category more clearly shows the impact of COVID-19 on FY?21
expenses. Employee Salaries declined in FY21, primarily reflecting a drop in adjunct expenses
with fewer class sections (as reflected also in tuition and fee revenue reductions). The reduction
in Continuing Education offerings is also reflected in this category, Duting FY21, there was a net
reduction of two positions due to retirement and the change in computer operations.

Employee Fringe Benefits not only reflect fewer adjunct and Continuing Education instructors
due to COVID-19 restrictions and enrollment reductions, but also some changes in health benefit
plans and options for employees through the State Health Benefit Program.

Another area of decrease was in Utilities/Insurance and Maintenance. Given the level of remote
services in FY21, the College significantly reduced utility costs as well as outsourced security and
cleaning costs. These costs have returned to a normal level in FY22.

As noted under Functional Expenses, the largest category of increase related to student financial
assistance. This reflects pandemic relief funds that the College has distributed to students.
Computer expenses also increased significantly in FY21. Part of this related to the College’s
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transition to cloud-based services for its ERP system (Jenzabar) and the procurement of new
laptops to serve students and staff during the pandemic.

Other areas had more minor expense changes. For example, the College reduced expenses during
COVID for certain office, paper and copier supplies, but increased expenses for cleaning and
COVID-related supplies. Certain service expenses were lower due to limitations on travel and
fewer legal costs.!

Statement of Revenues and Expenses: WCCC Foundation

Revenues and expenses for the WCCC Foundation, a component unit within the College’s
financial statements, are shown below. '

Statement of Revenues, Expense and Net Position (Foundation) (Rounded $000)

FY21 FY20 Change
Foundation Revenues
Fundraising 10 62 {52)
Other 827 185 642
Total Revenues 837 247 590
Foundation Expenses 59 275 (216)
Increase/(Decrease) in Net Position 778 (28)

Given the COVID-19 pandemic, the College hosted only one virtual fundraising event with limited
expenses in FY21. Other revenue primarily represents a $675,000 donation for the Community
Trail, which is a walking path around the College and connecting to the Warren County Technical
School. The funds received for this donation have been transferred to the College to reimburse
WCCC for this capital project in FY22. Other also includes unrealized gains for FY21, which
totaled $125,476. The balance of revenues were smaller donations and investment/dividend
income.

Foundation Expenses primarily represent the donation of training and software to the TUAS
program. In FY20, the Foundation made a one-time donation to the College for the Hall of Fame

addition, which is reflected in that year’s expenses.

Statement of Cash Flows

The third financial statement included in the audit is the Statement of Cash Flows. This statement
documents the actual outlay and receipt of cash and cash equivalents of the College and reconciles
the decreases in cash in accordance with GASB reporting. As this schedule notes, the overall cash
position was 7,527,641 at the close of FY21. This is a significant increase from the cash position
0f $6,423,928 at the end of FY20.

' By statute, WCCC is required to report annually on legal expenses and on any expenses for public relations firms.
In FY21, legal expenses were $21,503 while public relations expenses were $11,875,
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The College’s cash position as of June 30, 2021 was $6,749,126, an increase of $467,942 from the
Y20 level. Most of this increase represents the reimbursement from federal COVID grants for
pandemic relief costs or revenue loss.

The Foundation’s cash and cash equivalents position stood at $763,400 at the end of FY21. This
is a significant increase from the $127,234 at the close of FY20 and represents cash received to
support the Community Trail project. These funds have since been transferred to the College to
reimburse for the project costs, primarily incurred in FY22.

Long-Term (State) Liabilities

As noted previously, while two Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB)
pronouncements requires entities to report the net pension liabilty for their employees along with
Other Post Employment Benefits (OPEB), these these expenses ate not the responsibility of the
College.

In New Jersey, certain employees participate in the PERS pension system, which is a defined
benefit plan. The New Jersey Division of Pensions has provided actuarial estimates, which show
that the net pension liability for current WCCC employees and retirees. Eligible retirees receive
OPEB benefits through PERS. Eligibile Retirees through the Alternate Benefits Program (a
defined contribution plan) receive OPEB benefits through an annual appropriation in the State
budget. The NJ actuarial estimates for these costs are also shown in the financial statements.

The impact of these liabilities are shown on the financial statements along with the related deferred
inflows and outflows. Pension and OPEB liabilities were $2,923,077 and $10,828,197
respectively in FY21. They are not recorded in the Coliege’s accounting system and are shown
for GASB requirements only.

Future Developments

The final component of the MD & A is a discussion of future developments. This section is
intended to focus on prospective issues that may affect the College’s financial position in future
years. There are several items will may have a major impact on WCCC over the next year.

Impacis of COVID 19/Enrollment

In spring, 2020, the College converted completely to remote and distance education. This situation
continued through most of FY21. The College began slowly reopening in Summer 2021 and
hosted the majority of its classes in person in fall 2021. With the pandemic continuing, the College
continues to promote course flexibility, understanding that it may need to pivot to remote or
distance education at any point given the different variants and waves of infections.

To support the chalienges from the pandemic, WCCC has made various technology enhancements
in FY21, including moving its ERP and LMS systems to cloud technology and switching to
managed network services via Jenzabar. WCCC purchased licenses through spring 2022 for
synchronous meeting hardware and software to allow both classroom and office

15



communications/meetings. The College also continues to purchase PPE and numerous products
to aid with the sanitizing of the Washington and Phillipsburg tacilities. To help students who have
limited broadband capabilities at home, the College also expanded its external Wi-Fi to assist
students in outdoor and parking areas.

All of these enhancements have been funded through various COVID grants. WCCC has been
awarded funds directly by the U.S. Department of Education through the federal HEERF funds
provided directly to WCCC or through state grant distributions. These grants will be sufficient to
cover all COVID-19 needs through spring 2022. Funds also are available to support emergency
student financial needs due to the pandemic. Recent changes have allowed the College to
reimburse students for tuition and fee needs in addition to technology and other educational costs,

While COVID’s direct costs will be covered through grant funds, WCCC has also had to manage
the indirect impact of COVID-19. The virus has affected enrollment at colleges and universities,
especially those at the community college level. The switch to remote learning affected the
College’s enrollment in FY21, especially during the spring term, as students were experiencing
“fatigue” from distance/remote [earning options. WCCC was one of the few colleges to experience
a slight enrollment increase in its credit programs fall 2021. This may reflect the availability of
more on-campus offerings.

Two areas that continue to struggle are the College’s non-credit and customized training
enrollments. Many non-credit offerings require not only in-person instruction, but also clinical
learning, especially through smaller sites and long-term care facilities. These sites may be
experiencing worker shortages and unable to accommodate students in clinical settings at this time.
A similar situation is evident with Customized Training programs.” Some employers are either not
fully ‘back to work yet or are not in need of new job training at this time. We are hopeful that
-enrollment in all areas of the College is able to resume more thoroughly during 2022.

Strategic Planning

- In the semester of the pandemic (Spring 2020), the College had hoped to resume its strategic
planning activities. This effort was deferred when the WCCC had to switch to a completely remote
setting. At this time, the College intends to resume its next planning cycle in Spring 2022. This
plan 1s likely to be somewhat different than the initial direction taken in Spring 2020 as a result of
changes in the higher education industry since COVID-19. The plan will focus on the following
areas as approved by the Board of Trustees:

e True paths to prosperity

e Student experience

e Public support and market expansion
e Community and economic mobility
¢ College resources

e Facilities renewal
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Facilities Renewal and Replacement

Despite COVID-19, several facilities projects have been underway at WCCC. In summer 2020,
the College completed the replacement of the original four rooftop units on the Washington
campus. As noted previously, the Community Trail project was completed in September 2021,

In 2019, the College completed a renewal and replacement study for both Washington and
Phillipsburg facilities. This report identified various projects of high priority for the renewal of
campus facilities. During spring 2020, the College had begun the process to bid a roof replacement
project in Phillipsburg. However, due to COVID 19, this project was deferred. WCCC hopes to
complete this project in summer 2021 as it was the highest priority need identified in the
Phillipsburg facility plan.

Securing Our Children’s Future Bond

In July, 2021, the College was notified that it had received just under $1.6 million in Securing Our
Children’s Future (SOCF) Bond funds through a competitive grant process administered by the
New Jersey Secretary of Higher Education’s Office. These funds provide both capital and
equipment funds for high technology programs and renewal and replacement needs. WCCC will
provide a 25% match for these funds. The College will use most of these funds for a new
UAS/Robotics lab in the Phillipsburg Education Center (PEC) as well as the roof replacement
project at Phillipsburg and additional exterior repairs to the PEC. The new lab will not only
augment the College’s UAS program, but also allow WCCC to expand further into the Robotics
field. At this time, the College is also preparing several federal grant applications to further support
- this enterprise. ‘
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WARREN COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 18
JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020

2021 2020
ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 7491054 $ 6,390,459
Investments 1,040,215 899,010
Real Estate Held for Sale 112,000 112,000
Restricted cash and cash equivalents: 36,587 33,469
Receivables:
Student accounts receivable (less allowance for doubtful accounts
of $1,010,810 for 2021 and $943,841 for 2020) 169,683 233,829
Third-party receivables 290,523 320,157
Prepaid expenses 15,842 3,631
Total Current Assets 9,155,904 7,992,555
Noncurrent Assets:
Capital Assets:
Depreciable Buildings and Building Improvements
and Furniture, Machinery and Equipment 18,141,188 18,736,313
Total Noncurrent Assets 18,141,188 18,736,313
TOTAL ASSETS 27,297,092 26,728,368
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESQURCES
TOTAL DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 481,025 572,701
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable 1,189,895 1,487,726
Scholarship payable 17,223 14,658
Accrued compensated absences payable 194,629 175,560
Unearned revenue 29324 714,465
Total Current Liabilities 1,431,071 2,392,409
Non-Current Liabilities 3,035,077 3,308,980
TOTAL LIABILITIES 4,466,148 5,701,389
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 1,831,057 2,073,871
NET POSITION
Investment in capital assets 18,141,188 18,736,313
Restricted 680,844 638,827
Unrestricted/(Deficit) 2,658,880 151,169
TOTAL NET POSITION $ 21,480,912 $ 19,526,309

THE ACCOMPANYING NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THIS FINANCIAL STATEMENT



WARREN COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION

FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2021 AND 2020

Operating Revenue:

Student Tuition and Fees

Federal Grants and Contracts

State and Local Grants and Contracts
Foundation Revenue

Other

Total Operating Revenue

Operating Expenses:

Instruction

Institutional Support

Public Service

Academic Support

Operation and Maintenance of Plant
Student Support

Capital Expenses

Scholarships and Student Aid
Foundation Expenses

Depreciation

Total Operating Expenses

Operating Loss

Nonoperating Revenue:

State Appropriations

State Alternate Benefits Plan
County Appropriations
Other

Investment Income

Total Nonoperating Revenue

Other Revenue:

Capital Contributions
Donation of Real Estate Held for Sale

Total Other Revenue

Change in Net Position
Net Position- Beginning of Year (as Restated)

Net Position - End of Year

19
2021 2020

2,306,092 $ 2,639,312
2,557,460 1,123,305
7,530,933 7,487,196
837,726 135,705
208,575 164,651
13,440,786 11,550,169
3,160,308 3,377,417
7,708,188 7,898,561
406,050 474,159
1,261,243 1,192,277
1,018,278 1,108,939
826,553 909,741
4,152 35,513
590,266 178,082
59,638 275,000
1,041,059 1,073,878
16,075,735 16,523,567
(2,634,949) (4,973,398)
2,057,963 1,983,748
183,548 184,730
2,280,963 2,258,600
41,918 203,586
2,026 49,719
4,566,418 4,680,383
23,134 647,954
112,000

23,134 759,954
1,954,603 466,939
19,526,309 19,059,370
21,480,912 $ 19,526,309

THE ACCOMPANYING NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THIS FINANCIAL STATEMENT



WARREN COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 20
FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020

2021 2020
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash Received from Students for Tuition and Fees $ 4,169,301 $ 4,455,531
Grants and Confracts Received 3,088,467 1,799,089
Paymentis to Suppliers (4,459,266) (3,350,616)
Payment for Employee Salaries and Renefits (5,947,155) (6,391,348)
Other Receipts 249,953 205,365
Net Cash (Used for) Operating Activities (2,898,700) (3,281,999)
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Cash Received from Capital Contributions 23,134 647,954
Cash Received from State Appropriations 2,057,963 1,983,748
Cash Received from State Appropriations - Alternate Benefits Plan 183,548 184,730
Cash Received from County Appropriations 2,280,963 2,258,600
Cash Received from Other Non-Operating Activities 41,918 203,586
Net Cash Provided by Noncapital Financing Activities 4,587,526 5,278,618
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of Capital Assets (445,934) (966,645)
Net (Cash Used) for Capital and Related Financing Activities (445,934) {(966,645)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Investment Income : © 2,026 49,719
laterest and Dividends - Reinvested (15,729) {18,998)
Unrealized Gains/Losses (125,476) {16,392)
Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities (139,179) 14,329
Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents ‘ 1,103,713 1,044,303
Cash and Cash Equivalents - Beginning of Year 6,423,928 5,379,625
Cash and Cash Equivalents - End of Year $ 7,527,641 $ 6,423,928
Reconciliation of operating loss to net cash
used for operating activities:
Operating Loss $ (2,634949)  §  (4,973,398)
Adjustment to reconcile operating loss to net cash used for operating
activities:
Depreciation 1,041,059 1,073,878
Prior Year Educational Opportunity Fund expense
Changes in assets and liabilities:
(Increase)/Decrease in Student accounts receivable . 64,146 (7,898)
(Increase)Decrease in Third-party receivables 29,634 (206,985)
(Increase)/Decrease in Prepaid expenses (12,210} 14,852
(Increase)/Decrease in Deferred Outflows of Resources 91,676 249,824
Increase/(Decrease) in Accounts payable (297,831 515,913
Increase/(Decrease) in Scholarships payable 2,564 (3,271)
Increase/(Decrease) in Accrued compensated absences payable 19,069 40,283
Increase/(Decrease) in Unearned revenue (685,141) 658,865
Increase/(Decrease) in Non current liabilities (273,903) (386,109)
Increase/(Decrease) in Deferred Inflows of Resources (242,814) (257,953)
Netl Cash (Used for) Operating Activities $  (2,898,700) $ (3,281,999

THE ACCOMPANYING NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THIS FINANCIAL STATEMENT
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WARREN COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Warren County Comimunity College (the “College”) is an institution of higher education and a
governmental unit and instrumentality of the State of New Jersey as provided by the County
College Act, N.I.S.A. 18A:64A,

Basis of Accounting

The Warren County Community College’s financial statements are based on all applicable
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) pronouncements.

The College makes a distinction between operating and non-operating revenues and expenses. The
College’s policy for defining operating activities as reported on the Statement of Revenues,
Expenses and Changes in Net Position are those that generally result from exchange transactions
such as payments received for providing services and payments made for services or goods
received, Nearly all of the College’s expenses are from exchange transactions. Certain significant
revenue streams relied upon for operations are recorded as non-operating revenues, as defined by
GASB including state and county appropriations as well as investment income. Restricted
resources are spent and tracked at the discretion of the College within the guidelines of donor
restrictions, if any.

Reporting Entity

Governmental Accounting Standards Board ("GASB") Codification Section 2100, "Defining the
Financial Reporting Entity" establishes standards to determine whether a governmental component
unit should be included in the financial reporting entity. Component units are legally scparate
organizations for which the elected officials of the primary government are financially
accountable, In addition, component units can be other organizations for which the nature and
significance of their relationship with a primary government are such that exclusion would cause
the reporting entity's financial statements to be misleading. The primary government is financially
accountable if it appoints a voting majority of the organization's governing body and (1) it is able
to impose its will on that organization or (2) there is a potential for the organization to provide
specific financial benefits to, or impose specific financial burdens on, the primary government. A
legally separate, tax-exempt organization should be reported as a component unit of a reporting
entity if all of the following criteria are met: (1) The economic resources received or held by the
separate organization are entircly or almost entirely for the direct benefit of the primary
government, its component units, or its constituents. (2) The primary government, or ils
component units, is entitled to, or has the ability to otherwise access, a majority of the economic
resources received or held by the separate organization. (3). The economic resources received or
held by an individual organization that the specific primary government, or its component units, is
entitled to, or has the ability to othcrwise access, are significant to that primary government.
Accordingly, the Warren County Community College is a component unit of the County of
Warren,
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WARREN COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE
NOTES TQ FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021
(Continued)

Orgaunization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Cont’d)

The Warren County College Foundation (the Foundation) is a legally separate, tax-exempt entity
that was established exclusively to carry out charitable, educational functions that benefit the
College, its students, faculty and staff. The College appoints a voting majority of the Foundation’s
board. All financial resources of the Foundation are held for the direct benefit of the College or its
constituents and the College has the ability to access these significant resources. As a result, the
Foundation is considered a component unit of the College and is blended into the financial
statements accordingly.

Measurement Focus

The financial statements of the College have been prepared using the total economic resources
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting, and conform to generally accepted
accounting principles in the United States of America as applicable to calleges and universities.
For financial reporting purposes, the College utilizes the business-type activities model.

Under the terms of grant and other agreements, the College may fund certain programs by a
combination of specific cost-reimbursement grants, categorical block grants, other restricted funds
and general revenue. Therefore, when program expenses are incurred, both restricted and
unrestricted net position may be available to finance the program, It is the College’s policy to first
apply cost-reimbursement grants and other restricted resources to such programs, followed by
general revenue,

TFund Accounting

In order to ensure observance of limitations and restrictions placed on the use of the resources
available to the College, accounts are maintained in accordance with the principles of "fund
accounting”. This is the procedure by which resources for various purposes are classified for
accounting and internal reporting purposes into funds that are in accordance with activities or
objectives specified. Separate accounts are maintained for each fund; however, in the
accompanying financial statements, funds have been combined in order to comply with the
requirements of eliminating internal revenue and expense charges and to meet the financial
reporting requirements under accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America as promulgated by GASB.

Within each fund group, fund balances restricted by outside sources are so indicated and are
distinguished from Unrestricted Funds allocated to specific purposes by action of the governing
board. Restricted Funds may only be utilized in accordance with the purposes established by the
donor or grantor of such funds, and are in contrast with Unrestricted Funds over which fhe
governing board retains full control to use in achieving any of its institutional purposes.

The College uses encumbrance accounting for internal accounting and reporfing.  Under
encumbrance accounting, purchase orders, contract and other commitments for the expenditure of
resources are recorded to reserve a portion of the applicable appropriation.

The College accounts for its financial transactions through the following separate funds:

Operating Fund — to account for funds which are expendable for any purpose in performing the
primary objectives of the College, including tuition and student fees funds.
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WARREN COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021
{Continued)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Cont’d)

Restricted Fund — to account for those funds expendable for operating purposes, but restricted by
donors and other outside agencies, as to the specific purposes for which they may be expended.

Accounts included in the Restricted Funds are:

College Funds — to account for state and local grant revenue and expenses as well as student club
aclivities.

Foundation Funds — to account for revenue and expenses of funds for the Warren County
Community College Foundation,

Plant Fund — to account for funds expended for property and equipment.
Net Position:

Net position represents the difference between assets, deferred inflows and outflows, and
liabilities. Net investment in capital assets consists of capital assets, net of accumulated
depreciation, reduced by the outstanding balance of any borrowing used for the acquisition,
construction, or improvement of those assets. Net position is reported as restricted when there are
limitations imposed on their use either through the enabling legisiation adopted by the College or
through external restrictions imposed by creditors, grantors, or laws or regulations of other
governments. The College’s policy is to first apply restricted resources when an expense is
incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted net position is available,

Compensated Absences:

The College accounts for compensated absences (e.g., unused vacation, sick leave) as directed by
GASB. A liability for compensated absences attributable to setvices already rendered and not
contingent on a specific event that is outside the control of the employer and employee is accrued
as employees earn the rights to the benefits.

College employees are granted varying amounts of vacation and sick leave in accordance with the
College’s personnel policy or appropriate labor contract. Employees can accrue up to a one-yeat
allocation of vacation leave. Upon termination, employees are paid for accrued vacation. The
College’s policy permits employees to accumulate unused sick leave and carry forward the full
amount to subsequent years. Upon retirement, faculty who have worked at the College for 10 or
more years shall be paid hy the College for up to $8,000 in unused sick leave in accordance with
their contract. The College has established a long-term liability equivalent to the number of
faculty with 10 or more years of service,

In the Statement of Net Position, the liabilities whose average maturities are greater than one year
should be reported in two components — the amount due within one year and the amount due after
one year,
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FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2021
(Continued)

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Cont’d)
Inventory
The College had no inventory at June 30, 2021 or 2020.

Income Taxes

The College, as an instrumentality of the State of New Jersey and therefore a governmental entity,
has determined itself to be a tax-exempt organization and not subject to either federal or state
income taxes. The Warren County Community College Foundation, as a 501(c)(3) organization,
also is not subject to taxes.

Allowance for Uncollectible Accounts:

The College had an allowance for uncollectible accounts of $1,010,810 and $943,841 at June 30,
2021 and 2020, respectively. The allowance for uncollectible accounts consists of all items that
are currently 365 days or more overdue as well as 80% of the receivables over 120 days.

Deferred Outflows and Deferred Inflows of Resources:

The Statement of Net Position reports separate sections for deferred outflows of resources and
deferred inflows of resources. Deferred outflow of resources, reported after Total Assets,
represents a reduction of net position that applies to a future period(s) and will be recognized as an
outflow of resources (expense) at that time. Deferred inflows of resources, reported after Total
Liabilities, represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period(s) and will be
recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) at that time,

Transactions are classifted as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources
only when specifically prescribed by GASB standards. The College is required to report the
following as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources.

Defined Benefit Pension Plans — The difference between expected (actuarial) and actual
experience, changes in actuarial assumptions, net difference between projected (actuarial) and
actual earnings on pension plan investments, changes in the College’s proportion of expenses and
liabilities to the pension as a whole, differences between the College’s pension contribution and its
proportionate share of contributions, and the College’s pension contributions subsequent to-the
pension valuation measurement date.

Pensions:

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net
pension of the Public Employees Retirement System (“PERS”) and additions to/deductions from
PERS’s fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by the
plans. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are
recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at
fair value.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2021
{Continued)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Cont’d)

Management Estimates:

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the
reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Investments

Cash and cash equivalents include petty cash, change funds, amounts in deposits, and short-term
investments with maturities of three months or less.

The College generally records investments at fair value and records the unrealized gains and losses
as part of investment income. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an invesiment
in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The College
categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hicrarchy established by generally
accepted accounting principles. The hierarchy is based on the valuation inputs used to measure the
fair value of the asset. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in active markets for identical assets; Level
2 inputs are significant other observable inputs; Level 3 inputs are significant unobservable inputs.

Investments are presented in the financial statements in the aggregate at fair value based on quoted
market prices. The College's investments for the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020 consisted of
investments with the New Jersey Cash Management Fund.,

GASB requires disclosure of the level of custodial credit risk assumed by the College in its cash,
cash equivalents and investments, if those items are uninsured or unregistered. Deposits are
exposed to custodial credit risk if they are not covered by depository insurance and the deposits are
uncollateralized, collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial institution or
collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial institution’s trust department or agent
but not in the depositor-government’s name. Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a
bank failure, the College’s deposits may not be returned.

Interest Rate Risk — In accordance with its formal cash management plan, the College ensures that
any deposit or investment matures within the time period that approximates the prospective need
for the funds, deposited or invested, so that there is not a risk to the market value of such deposits
or investments.

Credit Risk — The College limits its investments to those authorized in its formal cash management
plan which are those permitted under state statute as detailed on the following pages.

Custodial Credit Risk — The College does not have a formal policy with respect to custodial credit
risk. However, the College ensures that College funds are only deposited in financial institutions in
which NJ Colleges are permitted fo invest their funds.
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FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021
(Continued)

Cash. Cash Equivalents, and Investments (Cont’d)

New Jersey statutes permit the deposit of public funds in institutions [ocated in New Jersey,
which are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) or by any other agencies
of the United States that insure deposits or the State of New Jersey Cash Management Fund.

New Jersey statutes require public depositories to maintain collateral for deposits of public funds
that exceed insurance limits as follows:

The market value of the collateral must equal 5% of the average daily balance of public
funds; and

If the public funds deposited exceed 75% of the capital funds of the depository, the
depository must provide collateral having a market value equal to 100% of the amount
exceeding 75%.

All collateral must be deposited with the Federal Reserve Bank, the Federal Home Loan Bank
Board or a banking institution that is a member of the Federal Reserve System and has capital
funds of not less than $25,000,000.

Cash and cash equivalents of the College as of June 30, 2021 consisted of the following:

College Foundation Total
Cash, Checking and Cash Equivalents $ 1,962,644 § 763,400 § 2,726,044
New Jersey Cash Management Fund 4,801,597 4,801,597

$ 6,764,241 $ 763,400 $ 7,527,641

Cash and cash equivalents of the College as of June 30, 2020 consisted of the following:

College Foundation Total
Cash, Checking and Cash Equivalents $ 2,997.123 $ 127,234 $ 3,124,357
New Jersey Cash Management Fund 3,299,571 3,299,571

¥ 6,296,694 § 127234 $ 6,423,928

The carrying amount of the College's cash and cash equivalents at cost at June 30, 2021 was
$7,527,641 and the bank balance was $7,711,742. The $4,801,597 with the New Jersey Cash
Management Fund was uninsured and unregistered. The carrying amount of the College's cash and
cash equivalents at cost at June 30, 2020 was $6,423,928 and the bank balance was $6,462,971.
The $3,299,571 with the New Jersey Cash Management Fund was uninsured and unregistered.

Investments
New Jersey statutes permit the College to purchase the following types of securities:

L. Bonds or other obligations of the United States of America or obligations guaranteed by
the United States of America;
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(Continued)

Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Investments (Cont’d)

Investments (Cont’d)

2,
3.

Government money market mutual funds;

Any obligation that a federal agency or a federal instrumentality has issued in
accordance with an act of Congress, which security has a maturity date not greater than
397 days from the date of purchase, provided that such obligation bears a fixed rate of
interest not dependent on any index or other external factor;

Bonds or other obligations, having a maturity date not more than 397 days from the date
of purchase, issued by New Jersey school districts, municipalities, counties, and entities
subject to the “Local Authorities Fiscal Control Law”, P.L. 1983, ¢.313 (C.40A:5A-1 et
seq.). Other bonds or obligations having a maturity date not more than 397 days from
the date of purchase may be approved by the Division of Investment in the Department
of the Treasury for investment by local units;

Local government investment pools;

Deposits with the State of New Jersey Cash Management Fund established pursuant to
section 1 of P.L. 1977, ¢.281 (C.52:18A-90.4); or

Agreements for the repurchase of fully collateralized securities if;

a. The underlying securities are permiited investments pursuant to items 1 and 3
above;

b. the custody of collateral is transferred to a third party;

c. the maturity of the agreement is not more than 30 days,

d. the underlying securities are purchased through a public depository as defined
in statute; and

e. a master repurchase agreement providing for the custody and security of

collateral is executed.

The Foundation is a 501(c)(3) entity and a component unit of the Coliege. The Foundation may
invest in commercial paper, repurchase agreements, treasury bills, certificates of deposit, money
market funds, component debt securitics, common stocks, preferred stocks, convertible
securities, mutual funds, and obligations of the United States Government. The credit quality
rating for the Common Fund high equity bond investment is AA+,

As of June 30, the actual changes in the fair market value of the Foundation’s investments
consisted of the following;

2021 2020
Balance July 1 $ 899,010 $ 863,620
Investment activity:
Realized gain/(loss) on investments § 15,729 § 16,392
Dividend and Interest Income 125,476 18,998
141,205 35,390

Balance June 30 $1,040,215 $ 899,010
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Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Investments (Cont’d)

Investments (Cont’d)

Investments consisted of the following;

June 30, 2021 June 30, 2020
Cost Value Fair Value Cost Value Fair Value
Mutual Funds $ 604,887 $ 1,040,215 $ 604,887 $ 899,010

$ 604,887 $ 1,040,215 3 004,887 $ 899,010

Student Accounts Receivable

Unpaid student accounts are included in the student accounts receivable, and students are notified
of payments due to the College. No provision for delinquent penalty interest is provided.
However, any grade or transcript release or future registration will be denied to any student with an
unpaid obligation due to the College. The College does pursue collection through an agency,
including litigation, if payment is not received during the next semester. During the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2021, the College used the services of two collection agents. Fees charged by these
agents ranged from 25% to 35% of the amount collected.

As of June 30, 2021 and 2020, accounts receivable from students amounted to $1,180,493 and
$1,177,670, respectively, excluding the allowance for doubtful accounts in the amount of
$1,010,810 for the fiscal year ending 2021 and $943,841 in 2020. The allowance for doubtful
accounts recorded for the fiscal year ended 2021 amounted to $1,010,810 as a result of the
following provision rates applied to the receivable balance per receivable aging category.

Agein Provision
Days Rate
121-365 80%
365 and over 100%

The College’s policy is to write off any student accounts that have been outstanding for more than
three years.

Third-Patty Receivables

As of June 30, 2021 and 2020, the College had third party-receivables in the amounts of $290,523
and $320,157, respectively.

Prepaid Expenses

Prepaid expenses at Tune 30, 2021 and 2020 total $15,842 and $3,631, respectively, and include a
number of small pre-payments for warranties, copier fees, and computer licenses. Prepaid expenses
represent that portion of items paid or accrued which will be charged to operations over time.
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Capital Assets

Capital assets include property, plant equipment, and infrastructure assets, such as roads and
sidewalks. Capital assets are defined by the College as assets with an initial unit cost of $2,500 or
more, Such assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or
constructed. The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the assets
or materially extend assets’ lives are not capitalized. Major outlays for capital assets and
improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed. The County of Warren is responsible for
the issuance of bonds and notes for the College's capital expenditures which ate financed by bond
ordinances. The County is also responsible for the payment of interest on issued bonded debt and
the retirement of such obligations. Accordingly, this debt is reported in the financial statements of
the County of Warren. Real estate held for sale is recorded at acquisition value. Capital assets
were reviewed for impairment.

Capital assets are recorded at cost and consisted of the following, as of June 30, 2021 and 2020:

Beginning Adjustments/ Ending
Balance Additions Deletions Balance
Capital Assets Being Depreciated:
Building $ 23,454,990 $ 23,454,990
Building Improvements 3,674,355 $ 243,066 3,917,421
Furniture and Fixtures 1,714,617 1,714,617
Computer and Equipment 2,255,058 202,868 §  (42,074) 2,415,852
31,099,020 445,934 (42,074) 31,502,880
Less Accumulated Depreciation for:
Building (7,960,361) (469,027) (8,429,388)
Building Improvements (1,198,478) (298,587) (1,497,065)
Furniture and Fixtures (1,324,025) (127,939 (1,451,964)
Computer and Equipment (1,879,843) (145,506) 42,074 (1,983,275
(12,362,707) (1,041,059) 42.074 (13,361,692)
Capital Assets,
Net of Accumulated Depreciation $ 18,736,313 $ (595,125 % -0- % 18,141,188

The College did not have active construction projects as of June 30, 2021,

Depreciation is recognized on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of the asset as

follows:
Classification Life
Buildings 50 years
Building Improvements 15 years
Furniture and Fixtures 7 years

Computers and Equipment

4 years
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Note 7:  Long-term Liabilities

The College’s long-term liabilities consist of unused sick leave that is paid upon retirement, and
net pension liability. The following table presents the long term liabilities for the fiscal years
ended June 30, 2021 and 2020:

June 30,
2021 2020
Compensated Absences Payable - Current Partion $ 194,629 $ 175,560
Compensated Absences - Long Term Portion 112,000 112,000
Net Pension Liability 2,923,077 3,196,980

$ 3,229,706 $ 3,484,540

The only post-retirement benefit offered through the College is a sick leave payout of up to $8,000
for faculty members meeting criteria contained within the faculty contract, including one year’s
advance notice of retirement. The Public Employee’s Retirement System (PERS) net pension
liability of the governmental fund types is recorded in the current and long-term liabilities and will
be liquidated by the Unrestricted Fund. The current portion of the net pension liability at June 30,
2021 is $-0- and the long term portion is $2,923,077. See Note 8 for Turther information on the
PERS.

Note 8; Pension Plans

Substantially all of the College’s employees participate in either the Public Employee’s Retirement
System (PERS) of New Jersey; and the New Jersey Alternate Benefit Program (ABP),

A. Public Employees’ Retirtement System (PERS)

Plan Description

The State of New Jersey, Public Employees’ Retirement System (PERS) is a cost-sharing multiple-
employer defined benefit pension plan administered by the State of New Jersey, Division of
Pensions and Benefits (the Division). For additional information about the PERS, please refer to
the  Division’s  annual  financial  statements  which can be  found  at
www.state.nj.us/treasury/pensions/annual-reports.shtml.

Benefits Provided

The vesting and benefit provisions are set by N.J.S.A. 43:15A. PERS provides retirement, death
and disability benefits. All benefits vest after ten years of service. The following represents the
membership tiers for PERS:

Tier Definition

1 Members who were enrolled prior to July 1, 2007

Members who were cligible to enroll on or after July 1, 2007 and prior to November 2, 2008
Members who were eligible to enroll on or after November 2, 2008 and prior to May 22, 2010
Members who were eligible to enroll on or after May 22, 2010 and prior to June 28. 201 1
Members who were eligible to enroll on or after June 28, 2011

v & W

Service retirement benefits of 1/55" of final average salary for cach year of setvice credit is
available to Tiers 1 and 2 members upon reaching age 60 and to Tier 3 members upon reaching
age 62,
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Pension Plans (Cont’d)

A. Public Employees’ Retirement System (PERS) (Cont’d)

Service retirement benefits of 1/60" of final average salary for each year of service credit is
available to Tier 4 members upon reaching age 62 and to Tier 5 members upon reaching age 65.
Early retirement benefits are available to Tiers 1 and 2 members before reaching age 60, to Tiers 3
and 4 with 25 or more yeats of service credit and Tier 5 with 30 or more years of service credit
before age 65. Benefits are reduced by a fraction of a percent for each month that a members
retires prior to the age at which a member can receive full early retirement benefits in accordance
with their respective tier. Tier 1 members can receive an unreduced benefit from age 55 to age 60
if they have at least 25 years of service. Deferred retirement is available to members who have at
least 10 years of service credit and have not reached the service retirement age for the respective
tier.

Contributions

The contribution policy for PERS is set by N.J.S.A. 43:15A and requires contributions by active
members and contributing members, The local employers’ contribution amounts are based on an
actuarially determined rate which includes the normal cost and unfunded accrued Hability, Chapter
19, P.L. 2009 provided an option for local employers of PERS to contribute 50% of the normal and
accrued liability contribution amounts certified for payments due in State fiscal year 2009, Such
employers will be credited with the full payment and any such amounts will not be included in
their unfunded liability. The actuaries will determine the unfunded liability of those retirement
systems, by employer, for the reduced normal and accrued liability contributions provided under
this law. This unfunded liability will be paid by the employer in level annual payments over a
period of 15 years, beginning with the payments due in the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012 and
will be adjusted by the rate of return on the actuarial value of assets. College contributions to
PERS amounted to $196,089 for fiscal year 2021.

The employee contribution rate was 7.50% effective July 1, 2018,

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows
of Resources Related to Pensions

At June 30, 2021, the College reported a liability of $2,923,077 for its proportionate share of the
net pension liability. The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2020, and the total
pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial vatuation
as of July 1, 2019 which was rolled forward to June 30, 2020. The College's proportion of the net
pension liability was based on a projection of the College's long-term share of contributions to the
pension plan relative to the projected contributions of all participating members, actuarially
determined. At June 30, 2020, the College's proportion was .0179%, which was an increase of
.0001% from its proportion measured as of June 30, 2019.

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021, the College recognized a pension benefit of $225,029. At
June 30, 2020, the College reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to pensions from the following sources:
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Pension Plans (Cont’d)
A. Public Employees’ Retirement System (PERS) (Cont’d)

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Quttlows of Resources and Deferred Inflows
of Resources Related to Pensions (Cont’d)

Amortization Deferred Deferred
Period Outflows of Inflows of
Year in Years Resources Resources
Changes in Assumptions 2016 5.57 $ 94,828
2017 5.48 5 276,694
2018 5.63 271,455
2019 5.21 215,574
2020 5.16 460,197
94,828 1,223,920
Difference Between Expected 2016 5.57 2,877
and Actual Experience 2017 548 8,229
2018 5.63 10,337
2019 5.21 16,479
2020 516 25,639
53,224 10,337
Changes in Proportion 2016 5.57 7,880
2017 548 46,293
2018 5.63 479,100
2019 521 63,527
2020 5.16 33,049
33,049 596,800
Net Difference Between Projected 2017 5.00 (35,770)
and Actual Investiment Earnings 2018 5.00 (33,174)
on Pension Plan Investments 2019 5.00 8,028
2020 5.00 160,829
09,913
Contribution Subsequent
to the Measurement Date 2020 1.00 200,011

$ 481,025 § 1,831,057

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources (excluding
employer specific amounts including changes in proportion and the contribution subsequent to
measurement date) related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows:
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Pension Plans (Cont’d)

A. Public Employees’ Retirement System (PERS) (Cont’d)

Pension Liabilities, Penston Expense, and Deferred Qutflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows
of Resources Related to Pensions (Cont’d)

Fiscal Year

Ending June 30, Total
2021 $ (366,793)
2022 (334,403)
2023 (191,103)
2024 (77,279)
2025 (16,714)

3 98629)

Actuarial Assumptions

The total pension liability for the June 30, 2020 measurement date was determined by an actuarial
valuation as of July 1, 2019 which was rolled forward to June 30, 2020. This actuarial valuation
used the following actuarial assumptions:

Inflation Rate:
Price 2.75%
Wage 3.25%
Salary Increases:
Through 2026 2.00 — 6.00% based on years of service
Thereafter 3.00 — 7.00% based on years of service
Investment Rate of Return 7.00%

Pre-retirement mortality rates were based on the Pub-2010 General Below-Median Income
Employee Mortality Table with an 82.2% adjustment for males and 101.4% adjustment for
females, and with future improvement from the base year of 2010 on a generational basis, Post-
retirement mortality raics were based on the Pub-2010 General Below-Median Income Healthy
Retiree mortality table with a 91.4% adjustment for males and a 99.7% adjustment for females,
and with future improvement from the base year of 2010 on a generational basis.  Disability
retirement rates used to value disabled retirees were based on the Pub-2010 Non-Safety Disabled
Retiree mortality table with a 127.7% adjustment for males and 117.2% adjustment for females,
and with future improvement from the base year of 2010 on a generational basis, Mottality
improvement is based on Scale MP-2020.

The actuarial assumptions used in the July 1, 2019 valuation were based on the results of an
actuarial experience study for the period July 1, 2014 to June 30, 2018.
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Pension Plans (Cont’d)

A. Public Employees’ Retirement System (PERS) {Cont’d)

Long Term Expected Rate of Return

In accordance with State statute, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments
(7.00% at June 30, 2020) is determined by the State Treasurer, after consultation with the Directors
of the Division of Investments and Division of Pensions and Benefits, the Board of Trustees and
the actuaries. The long-term expected rate of return was determined using a building block method
in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected_returns, net of
pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These
ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected
future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected
inflation. Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class included in
PERS’ target asset allocation as of June 30, 2020 are summarized in the following table:

Long-Term

Expected Real

Target Rate of

Asset Class Allocation Return
U.S. Equity 27.00% 7.71%
Non-U.S. Developed Market Equity 13.50% 8.57%
Emerging Markets Equity 5.50% 10.23%
Private Equity 13.00% 11.42%
Real Assets 3.00% 9.73%
Real Estate 8.00% 9.56%
High Yield 2.00% 5.95%
Private Credit 8.00% 7.59%
Investment Grade Credit 8.00% 2.67%
Cash Equivalents 4,00% 0.50%
U.S. Treasuries 5.00% 1.94%
Risk Management Strategies 3.00% 3.40%

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.00% as of June 30, 2020. The
projection of cash: flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan
members will be made at the current member coniribution rates and that contributions from
employers and the nonemployer contributing entity will be based upon 78% of the actuarially
determined contributions for the State employer and 100% of actuarially determined contributions
for tbe local employers. Based on those assumptions, the plan's fiduciary net position was
projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current plan members.
Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on plan investments was applied to all projected
benefit payments to determine the total pension liability.
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Pension Plans (Cont’d)

A. Public Employees’ Retirement System (PERS) (Cont’d)

Sensitivity of the College's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the
Discount Rate

The foliowing presents the College’s proportionate share of the collective net pension liability as
of June 30, 2020 calculated using the discount rate as disclosed below, as well as what the
College’s proportionate share of the net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a
discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower or I-percentage point higher than the current rate:

June 30, 2020
1% Current 1%
Decrease Discount Rate Increase
(6.00%) {7.00%) (8.00%)
College's proportionate share
of the Net Pension Liability $ 3,671,515 $ 2,923,077 $ 2,276,037

Pension plan Fiduciary Net Position

Detailed information about the pension plan's fiduciary net position is available in the separately
issued PERS financial statements.

B. Alternate Benefit Program

Plan Description

The New Jersey Alternate Benefit Program (ABP) is a single-employer, defined contribution
pension plan, which was established pursuant to P.L. 1969, ¢. 242 (N.J.S.A. 18A:66-167 et seq.).
The ABP provides retirement, life insurance, long-term disability coverage, and medical benefits
to qualified members.

Contributions

The contributions requirements of plan members are determined by State statute. In accordance
with N.I.5.A. 18A:66-173, required contributions, calculated on the employee’s base pay, are 5%
for plan members, and 8% for employers. Plan members may make additional voluntary
contributions subject to section 403(b) of the internal revenue code.

Under N.J.8.A 18 A:66-174, most employer contributions are made by the State of New Jersey on-
behalf of the College. The College is responsible for the employer contributions for non-academic
employees.

Plan members direct the investment of contributions to insurance companies and mutual fund
companies selected by the New Jersey Division of Pensjons’ Pension Provider Selector Board.
These companies administer plan funds based on alternate benefit contracts with the New Jersey
Division of Pensions.
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Pension Plans {Cont’d)

B. Alternate Benefit Program (ABP) (Cont’d)

Contributions (Cont’d)

Amounts deferred under the plan are not available to employees until termination, retirement,
death or unforeseeable emergency. The plan carriers are as follows:

AXA Financial (Equitable)
Prudential
Voya Financial Services
Teacher’s Insurance and Annuity Association/College Retirement Equities Fund
(TIAA/CREF)
MassMutual Retirement Services
VALIC
Metlife

During the fiscal year end June 30, 2021 employee contributions to the plan were $123.855 and
College contributions were $198,167. The State of New Jersey reimbursed the College a total of
$183,548 for eligible employees.

Unearned Revenue

Unearned revenue consists of the unearned portion of tuition and fees for courses offered during

‘the summer and fall, as well as advanced funding for summer courses. All tuition received for

courses that were not more than 50% complete as of June 30 are recognized as tuition revenue in
the subsequent fiscal year. As of June 30, 2021 and 2020, unearned revenue is a total of $29,324
and $714,465, respectively. '

Economic Dependency

The College receives a substantial amount of its support from federal, state and county
governments. A significant reduction in the level of support, if this were to oceur, may have an
effect on the College’s programs and activities.

Note 11: Risk Management

The College maintains commercial insurance coverage for property, liability, student accident and
surety bonds. The College is a member of a joint insurance Pool for workers’ compensation.
Health benefits are provided to employees through the State of New Jersey Health Benefits Plan.

The College is a member of the New Jersey Community College Insurance Pool Worker's
Compensation Fund (the "Pool"). The Pool provides the College with workers' compensation
insurance. The Pool is a risk-sharing public entity risk pool that is both an insured and self-
administered group of school Colleges established for the purpose of providing low-cost insurance
coverage for its members in order to keep local property taxes at a minimum. Fach member
appoints an official to represent their respective College for the purpose of creating a governing
body from which officers for the Pool are elected.
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Note 11: Risk Management (Cont’d)

As a member of the Pool, the College could be subject to supplemental assessments in the event of
deficicncies, If the assets of the Pool were to be exhausted, members would become responsible
for their respective shares of the Pool's liabilities.

The Pool can declare and distribute dividends to members upon approval of the State of New
Jersey Department of Banking and Insurance, These distributions are divided amongst the
members in the same ratio as their individual assessment relates to the total assessment of the
membership body. In accordance with the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, these
distributions are used to reduce the amount recorded for membership expense in the year in which
the distribution was declared.

The financial statements for the Fund for 2021 were not available at the time of audit. Selected
summarized financial information for the Pool at December 31, 2020 and 2019 is as follows:

New Jersey Community College
Insurance Pool Worker's Compensation. Fund

2020 2019
Total Assets $ 12,712,299  § 11,269,163
Net Position $ 6,735,308 % 4,847,219
Operating Revenue $ 1,203,500 § 1,321,203
Total Expenses and Adjustments $ 708,767 $ 905,623
Nonoperating Revenue $ -0- 8§ -0-
Change in Net Position $ 494,733 § 415,580
Member Dividends b 0- ¥ -0-

Financial statements for the Pool are available at the Pool’s Executive Director’s Office:
New Jersey Community College Insurance Pool
PO Box B
Trenton, NJ 08690

Note 12: Contingent Liabilities

The College is periodicaily involved in claims and lawsuits incidental to its operations. In the
opinion of the administration and legal counsel, the ultimate resolution of these matiers would not
have a material adverse effect on the financial position or operations of the College.

The College participates in federal and state assisted grant programs. These programs arc subject
to program compliance audits by the prantors or their representatives. The College is potentially
liable for expenses which may be disallowed pursuant to the terms of these grant programs.
Management of the College is not aware of any material items of noncompliance which would
result in the disallowance of grant program expenses,
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Note 13: Accounts Pavable

The College’s accourits payable as of June 30 consists of:

2021 2020
Accounts Payable, including accruals $ 599283 % 977,633
Contribution Subsequent to Measurement Date - Pensions 200,011 196,089
Payroll Liabilities 390,601 310,722

$ 1,189,895 $ 1,484 444

The Foundation’s accounts payable as of June 30 consists of:

2021 2020
Accounts Payable - Vendors $ 3,282
$ -0- 3 3,282

Note 14: Operating Leases

The College did not have any operating leases as of June 30, 2021, or June 30, 2020,

Note 15: Restricted Net Position

There was restricted net position of $680,844 and $638,827 as of Tune 30, 2021 and June 30,2020,
respoctively. The restricted net position of the College is for student group funds. The donor
restricted net position of the Foundation is for temporary and permanently restricted awards.

Note 16: Related Party Transactions

During the fiscal years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, the College recognized $2,280,963 and
$2,258,600 in operating aid from the County of Warren.

Note 17: Unrestricted Net Position

The total Unrestricted Net Position at June 30, 2021 and 2020, was $2,658,880 and $151,169
respectively. The reduction in the Unrestricted Net Position exists primarily due to the net pension
liability, and deferred inflows and outflows from pensions of $4,473,120 in 2021. This does not
reflect that the College is in financial hardship and is a permitted practice under Generally
Accepted Accounting Principles.

Pre-GASB 68 - Net Position ~ $ 7,132,000
GASB 68 - Pensions (4,473,120)

Post GASB 68 - Net Position $ 2,658,880
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Note 17: Unrestricted Net Position {Cont’d)

Of the total Unrestricted Net Position, the fol!owmg have been designated by the Board of
Trustees as of June 30, 2021 and 2020:

2021 2020
Designated for Future Projects $ 608,288 $ 516,013
Designated for Building Projects 2,111,018 1,683,974
Designated for Subsequent Fiscal Year 1,963,482 1,185,107
$4,682,788 $3,385,094

Note 18: Post-Employment Benefits Other Than Pensions (OPEB)

State Health Benefit Program Fund — Local Education Retired (including Presctiption Drug

Program Fund)
General Information about the OPER Plan

Plan Description and Benefits Provided

The College is in a “special funding situation”, as described in GASB Codification Section P50, in
that OPEB coniributions and expenses are legally required to be made by and are the sole
responsibility of the State of New Jersey, not the College,

The State of New Jersey reports a liability as a result of its statutory requirements to pay other
spost-employment (health) benefits for the State Health Benefit Iocal Education Retired Education
Plan. The State Health Benefit Local Education Retired Employees Plan is a multiple-employer
defined benefit OPER plan that is administered on a pay-as-you-go basis. Accordingly, no assets
are accumulated in a qualifying trust that meets the criteria in GASB Codification Section P50.
The State Health Benefits Local Education Retired Employees Plan provides medical, prescription
drug, and Medicare Part B reimbursement to retirees and their covered dependents of local
education employers.

The employer contributions for the participating local education employers are legally required to
be funded by the State of New Jersey in accordance with N.J.S.A, 52:14-17.32f, According to
N.J.S.A. 52:14-17.32f, the State provides employer-paid coverage to employees who retire from a
board of education or county college with 25 years or more of service credit in, or retires on a
disability pension from, one or more of the following plans: the Teachers’ Pension and Annuity
Fund (TPAF), the Public Employees’ Retirement System (PERS), the Police and Firemen
Retirement System (PFRS), or the Alternate Benefit Program (ABP). Pursuant to Chapter 78, P.L.
2011, future retirees eligible for postretirement medical coverage who have less than 20 years of
creditable service on June 28, 2011 will be required to pay a percentage of the cost of their health
care coverage in retirement provided they retire with 25 years or more of pension service credit.
The percentage of the premium for which the retiree will be responsible will be determined based
on the retiree’s annual retirement benefit and level of coverage.

The total nonemployer OPERB liability does not include certain other postemployment benefit
obligations that are provided by the local education employers. The reporting of these benefits is
the responsibility of the individual education employers,

For additional information about the State Health Benefit L.ocal Education Retired Education Plan,
please refer to the Division’s annual financial statements can be found at https://www.state.nj.us/
treasury/pensions/gasb-notices-opeb.shiml.
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Note 18: Post-Employment Benefits Other Than Pensions (OPEB) (Cont’d)

State Health Benefit Program Fund — Local Education Retired (including Prescription Drua

Program Fund) (Cont’d)

General Information about the OPEB Plan

Employees Covered by Benefit Terms

At June 30, 2019, the plan membership consisted of the following:

Inactive Plan Members or Beneficiaries Currently Receiving Benefit Payments 149,304
Active Plan Members 216,804
Total 366,108

Total Nonemployer OPEB Liability

The total nonemployer OPEB liability as of June 30, 2020 was determined by an actuarial
valuation as of June 30, 2019, which was rolled forward to June 30, 2020,

Actuarial Assumptions and Other Inputs

The actuarial assumptions vary for each plan member depending on the pension plan the member
is enrolled in. This actuarial valuation used the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all
periods in the measurement.

Inflation Rate 2.50%
TPAT/ABP PERS
Salary Increases:
Through 2026 1.55-4,45% 2.00 - 6.00%
based on service based on Service
years years
Thereafter 1.55 ~ 4.45% 3.00 - 7.00%
based on service based on service
years years

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2019 valuation were based on the results of
actuarial experience studies for the periods July 1, 2015 - June 30, 2018 and July 1, 2014 — June
30, 2018 for ABP and PERS, respectively.
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Post-Employment Benefits Other Than Pensions (QPEB) (Cont’d)

State Health Benefit Program Fund -~ Local Education Retired (including Prescription Drug
Program Fund) (Cont’d)

Mortality Rates

Pre-retirement mortality rates were based on the Pub-2010 Healthy “Teachers” (TPAF/ABP) and
“General” (PERS) classification headcount-weighted mortality table with fully generational
mortality improvement projections from the central year using Scale MP-2020. Post-retirement
mortality rates were based on the Pub-2010 “General” classification headcount-weighted mortality
tahle with fully generational mortality improvement projections from the central year using Scale
MP-2020. Disabiiity mortality was based on the Pub-2010 “General” classification headcount-
weighted disabled mortality table with fully generational mortality improvement projections from
the central year using Scale MP-2020.

Health Care Trend Assumptions

For pre-Medicare medical benefits, the trend rate is initially 5.6% and decreases to a 4.5% long
term trend rate after seven years. For post-65 medical benefits, the actual fully-insured Medicare
Advantage trend rate for fiscal years 2021 through 2022 are reflected. The assumed post-65
medical trend rate is 4.5% for all future years. For prescription drug benefits, the initial trend rate-
is 7.0% and decrcases to a 4.5% long term rate after seven years. For the Medicare Part B’
reimbursement, the trend rate is 5.0%.

Discount Rate

The discount rate for June 30, 2020 was 2.21%. This represents the municipal bond rate as chosen
by the State of New Jersey Division of Pensions and Benefits. The source is the Bond Buyer Go
20-Bond Municipal bond Index, which includes tax-exempt general obligation municipal bonds
with an average rating of AA/Aa or higher. As the long-term rate of return is less than the
municipal bond rate, it is not considered in the calculation of the discount rate, rather the discount
rate is set at the municipal bond rate.

Changes in the State’s Proportionate Share of the Total OPEB Liability Associated with the
College

Total OPER
Liability
Balance at June 30, 2019 $ 6,261,237
Changes for Year:
Service Cost 385,709
Interest on the Total OPEB Liability 229,472
Changes of Assumptions 1,977,939
Differences between Expected and Actual Experience 2,156,636
Gross Benefit Payments by the State (188,510)
Contributions from Members 5,714
Net Changes 4,566,960

Balance at June 30, 2020 b 10,828,197
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Note 18: Post-Employment Benefits Other Than Pensions (OPEB) (Cont’d)

State Health Benefit Program Fund — T.ocal Education Retired {including Prescription Drug

Program Fund) (Cont’d)

Sensitivity of the Total Nonemployer OPEB Liability Attributable to the College to Changes in the
Discount Rate

The following presents the total nonemployer OPEB Liability attributable to the College as of June
30, 2020, calculated using the discount rate as disclosed in this note, as well as what the total
nonemployer OPEB liability attributable to the College would be if it were calculated using a
discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower or 1-percentage-point higher than the current rate:

June 30, 2020
At 1% At At 1%
Decrease Discount Rate Increase
(1.21%) (2.21%) (3.21%)
Total OPEB Liability Attributable to
the College h) 13,053,950 $ 10,828,197 $ 9,087,872

Sensitivity of the Total Nonemployer OPEB Liability Attribatable to the College to Changes in the
Healthcare Trend Rate

The following presents the total nonemployer OPEB Liability attributable to the College as of June
30, 2020, calculated using the healthcare trend rate as disclosed in this note, as well as what the
total nonemployer OPER liability attributable to the College would be if it were calculated using a

healthcare trend rate that is 1-percentage-point lower or l-percentage-point higher than the current
rate:

June 30, 2020
1% Healthcare 1%
Decrease Cost Trend Rate Increase

Total OPEB Liability Attributable to
the College $ 13,053,950 $ 10,828,197 $ 9,087,872
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Note 18: Post-Employment Benefits Other Than Pensions (QPEB) (Cont’d)

State Health Benefit Program Fund — Local Education Retired (inciuding Prescription Drug
Program Fund) {Cont’d)

OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to
OPER

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021 the College recognized OPEB expense of $915,269 as
determined by the State of New Jersey Division of Pensions and Benefits. This expense and the
related offsetting revenue are for benefits provided by the State through a defined benefit OPEB
plan that meets the criteria in GASB Codification Section P50, in which there is a special funding
situation,

In accordance with GASB Codification Section P50, as the College’s proportionate share of the
OPEB liability is $-0-, there is no recognition of the allocation of the proportionate share of the
deferred inflows and outflows of resources. At June 30, 2020 the State had deferred outflows of
resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB associated with the College from the
following sources:

Deferred Deferred
Deferral ~ Period Outtlows of Inflows of
Year in Years Resources Resources
Changes in Assumptions 2017 9.54 $ 657,146
2018 9,51 578,413
2019 929 § 77,964 '
2020 9.24 1,763,877
1,841,841 1,235,559
Differences between Expected and
Actual Experience 2018 9.51 546,780
2019 9,20 917,639
2020 9.24 1,644,002
1,644,002.00 1,464,419
Changes in Proportion N/A N/A 2,023,450

§ 5509293 § 2,699,978
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Note 18: Post-Employment Benefits Other Than Pensions {OPEB) (Cont’d)

State Health Benefit Program Fund — Local Education Retired (including Prescription Drug

Program Fund) (Cont’d)

OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to
OPEB (Cont’d)

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to
OPEB will be recognized in. OPEB expense as follows:

F iscal Year

Ending June 30, Total

2021 $ (6,937
2022 (6,938)

2023 (6,937)
2024 (6,937)

2025 (6,937)
Thereafter (751,183)

p (785,869)

Note 19: Subsequent Event

The COVID-19 outbreak in the United States and specifically in New Jersey has caused disruption
of the College’s normal financial operations. Though the impact on the College’s operations
canunot be reasonably estimated at this date, it is likely that there will be an impact on certain
revenue in the Operating Funds other than state aid and the tax levy. Also, there have been

additional operating expenses in the Operating Funds not planned for or expected at the time of the
adoption of the College’s 2021-22 budget related to COVID-19,

Additionally, the College’s cash flow in the Operating Funds may be affected by the timing of the
collection of the College’s contribution from the County as well as certain State aid payments.



45
WARREN COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 202}
(Continued)

Note 20: Prior Period Adjustment

There was a prior period adjustment to the College’s current assets and net position due to an
unrecorded amount related to real estate held for sale that was donated to the College’s Foundation
during fiscal year end June 30, 2020,

Balance 6/30/20
as Previously Retroactive  Balance 6/30/20
Reported Adjustments as Restated
Statement of Net Position:
Governmental Activities;
Statement of Net Position:
Current Assets:

Real Estate Held for Sale $ -0- $ 112,000 $ 112,000
Total Current Assets 7,880,555 112,000 7,992,555
Net Position:

Unrestricled/(Deficit) 39,169 112,000 151,169
Total Net Position 19,414,309 112,000 19,526,309

Statement of Revenue, Expenses and
Changes in Net Position:

Other Revenue:

Donation of Real Estate Held for Sale -0- 112,000 112,000

Total Other Revenue 647,954 112,000 759,054

Change in Net Position 354,939 112,000 466,939

Net Position - End of Year 19,414,309 112,000 19,526,309



46

"¢107 ‘0f suny papus Ieaf [easy o1y SuLmp pajuswua(diur ses 89 0N GSVE) SE UOTBULIOIU I SIEdA Ud] UIRIUOD 10U S0P AANPIYISE SIGL 130N

%TE'RE %LT9% %09 L% %0187 %10 %E6°LY %807C5 Amrger
ucisuad [e10] 91 Yo aSejusatad B se uomised jou Areranpl] ug[g
%09 0L1 %¥9TET %%B0°SLT %I9GRE %69°CEs %8L 0T %V 6LE foided 2aojdws pa1asod st Jo sfeusarad
B SE Appiqey woysuad 1au ayg Jo areys apeuoiodod safaqjon
BCH'EILT g SOFEATT §  0L5'T0%T §  980°€LET §  v9R°C0ET §  TECERTT £ 9T $

[j014ed sakordura pa12A02 52591100

LLD'ET6T $  086961°C $  630°€8S°C §  GELYETS T 906969 $  80F69EC $  BOSELY $ Annger norsuad 18u agy jo areys sjeueriodord 5537100

%9998FTELTOD YSTBLIPLLIOO %E696L6T810°0 WET0TSPLETH O Y6TEELIESETO0 YBOLEALAETO0 %rLEBDISETO0 Annigery uctsuad jeu a1y Jo vorodord sa8sfien

[0t 0707 6102 810¢

LIOT 910T 510z
"DE ouny Suipuy Jed A [B98L]

SEVAA TVOSId NAAFS ISV 1
WHLSAS INJNHATLTY SHIAOQTING 1T
ALTTIEVITNOISNAL IAN HEHL 40 HFIVHS SLVNOITIOLOad S.HOE TIOD 40 HINTHHOS
SHHIAHHDS NOILYWAOANT A¥Y LNHWH T1dd(15 UHAINOEd
ADTTIOD ALINAWINOD ALNNCO NV M




47

"€ 10T “0F sun papus Jeak [easyy 1) Fulinp pausws[du sesm §9 ON S VD) S UOHRULIOJUS JO STEa4 US] U[EIU02 JOU S20p J[TPIYDS SIY], 910N

VA A %8001 %5991 %FT 91 %ST 1 %SLST %LE 9T
6IV'LSET §  SSPEILT §  SOVSOTL §  OLSTOE'T §  980°CLEl §  ORSOET §  ZECRTT §
-0 § -0 $ -0 $ -0 § -0 $ -0 $ -0 $
(680°961) (eLzLn) (01£°012) (st (gz¥'607) {Tr9°s0D) @i
680961 §  L6LTLT  § 01L01T 0§ IISTIIZT 0§ 8TF60T 0§ T9S0Z § TEITIC §
102 0207 610C 810T L102 9102 §10¢T

"€ unf Suipuy o & [BISL]

SUVHA TVOSLI NHAHS ISV']

WHLSAS INAWHIILTT SAFAOTdNA DT TdNd
SNOLLIEIMINOD SADATIOD 40 T 1INTIHIS
SHINAEIHDS NOLLYIARIOANT AV INAWA TddS ATAIN0Td
HOATIOD ALINNWIWOD ALNNOD NTIdVM

[1o14ed 93407dws paleand Jo aSejuscrad © se suonNQINUOY)

[Torded safojdws paiaaod s3F3[[00

(5599x%2)/ADUDIONIIP UOINYILYUO )

UOTNQLIUI0d PAIINEAI A[[ENIORNT0D 31 0} UOHE[2S UL SUOHNQIIU0)

uoiRNqLIuod pannbsi Ajjeniornuosy



48

"8T0T "0€ SUn( papUa Tead RSy U Surnp pajuswaldun sem ¢/, "ON g5V St UorRuIou] o 194 U3) UIE)LO2 10U S20p S[RPSTYIS SIYL Q10N

"EJBP SUSUSY 61 (¢ PUB §10T *L10T “910T “0€ dun( oy uo
[[014ed 541 UO pasEq SIe (0ZOT PUE 10T ‘$10T ‘L10T ‘0 2unp Swpus smas [eosy ayy 1of [jorfed pamao) -

%I£8 %495k %99% %96% [lo14rq sako]dury paisac)) jo a8pIu021a & SE ANIqer] gadO [RoL
0LETOET  §  9B0°CLETT § pOR°COET 0§ ZLCERTT % x [[o1Ae aadojduy parac) salefion
L6L'RZR0T  §  LETIDTO  §  2TFC809 % C06°I0FD  § surpuyg - ANIqRrT ga40 [#eL
LETT9T D RTFC80°9 706°10F°9 T05°0.L9°9 Suridag - AMmqerT 4940 oL
096°00< Y 608°LLI (pips1e) {009'397) ANNIQer'T A4 (e, w sBuey)) jaN

(016°881) (10Z°Z61) (699791} (z8Tsp1) SJUSWARJ 11Uy SSOID)
FLLG L69°C Ty's 09%°S SUOHNGINUOY) I2qUIA
9E9°9¢1°E 95£°¢c6 {(r98°291) souatzadxy [eM0Y puR po1oadXy Usamiaq SaousIamIc]
6E6°LLE'T (666°0ZE) (P01°869) (c95°1.8) suondunssy ur safueyn
TLV'6TT 1LT°6hT SSLTHT TFSE0T 15212U]
60L°58¢ $  <89%9p¢ $ 98,95t $  SrTIRS $§ 1500 201Al2g

0707 6107 8107 L10T

*0E suny 3Wpuy rea g [2s1]

SAVHA TVISIH U104 ISV
SOLLVY THLVTH NV 20T T100 THL HIIA Al vID055Y
ALMIEVTT 9440 TvLOL 4HL 0 A4VHS S1vNOILE0d0d SALVLS AL N SIONVHD A0 ' INALHIS
SHINAEHDS NOILVIAOANL A LV INAWA Idd1S AFa0i0Td
HDATION ALINNWIWOD AINNOD NTTAvA




49
WARREN COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE
NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

A. PUBLIC EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT SYSTEM

Benefit Changes

There were none.

Changes of Actuarial Assuinptions

The discount rate changed from 6.28% as of June 30, 2019 to 7.00% as of June 30, 2020.

In the July 1, 2018 actuarial valuation the mortality improvement was based on Scale MP-2019 while in the
July I, 2019 actuarial valuation the mortality improvement was based on Scale MP-2020.

B. STATE HEALTH BENEFIT LOCAL, EDUCATION RETIRED EMPLOYEES OPEB PILAN

Benefit Changes

There were none.

Changes of Actuarial Assumptions

The discount rate for June 30, 2020 was 2.21%. The discount rate for June 30, 2019 was 3.50%, a change of
~1.29%.

The mortality rates in the valuation as of June 30, 2020 were based on the following:

Pre-retirement mortality rates were based on the Pub-2010 Healthy “Teachers” (TPAF/ABP) and “General”
(PERS) classification headcount-weighted mortality table with fuily generational mortality improvement
projections from the central year using Scale MP-2020. Post-retirement mortality rates were based on the
Pub-2010 “General” classification headcount-weighted mortality table with fully generational mortality
improvement projections from the central year using Scale MP-2020. Disability mortality was based on the
Pub-2010 “General” classification headcount-weighted disabled mortality table with fully generational
mortality improvement projections from the central year using Scale MP-2020.

The mortality rates in the valuation as of June 30, 2019 were based on the following:

Pre-retirement mortality rates were based on the Pub-2010 Healthy “Teachers” (TPAF/ABP), “General”
(PERS), and “Safety” (PFRS) classification headcount-weighted mortality table with fully generational
mortality improvement projections from the central year using Scale MP-2019, Post-retirement mortality
rates were based on the Pub-2010 “General” classification headcount-weighted mortality table with fully
generational mortality improvement projections from the central year using Scale MP-2019. Disability
mortality was based on the Pub-20T0 “General” classification headcount-weighted disabled mortality table
with fully generational mortality improvement projections from the central year using Scale MP-2019.

The health care trend rates in the valuation as of June 30, 2020 were based on the following;
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{Continued)

B. STATE HEALTH BENEFIT LOCAL EDUCATION RETTRED EMPLOYEES OPEB PLAN (Cont’d)

Changes of Actuarial Assumptions (Cont’d)

For pre-Medicare medical benefits, the trend rate is initially 5.6% and decreases to a 4.5% long term frend
rate after seven years. For post-65 medical benefits, the actual fully-insured Medicare Advantage trend rate
for fiscal year 2021 through 2022 are reflected. The assumed post-65 medical trend rate is 4.5% for all
future years. For prescription drug benefits, the initial trend rate is 7.0% and decreases to a 4.5% long term
rate after seven years, For the Medicare Part B reimbursement, the trend rate is 5.0%.

The health care trend rates in the valuation as of June 30, 2019 were based on the following:

For pre-Medicare medical benefits, the trend rate is initially 5.7% and decreases to a 4.5% long term trend
rate after eight years. For post-65 medical benefits, the actual fully-insured Medicare Advantage trend rate
for fiscal year 2020 is reflected. The assumed post-65 medical trend rate is 4.5% for all future years. For
prescription drug benefits, the initial trend rate is 7.5% and decreases to a 4.5% long term rate after eight
years. For the Medicare Part B reimbursement, the trend rate is 5.0%.
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Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and
on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Finaricial Statements
Performed in Accordance with Governmeni Auditing Standards

{ndependent Auditors' Report

The Honorable Chairman and
Members of the Board of Trustees

Warren County Community College

Washington, New Jersey

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America, the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by
the Comptroller General of the United States and the audit requirements prescribed by the Office of
Management and Budget, Department of the Treasury, State of New Jersey (the “Department™), the financial
statements of the Warren County Community College, in the County of Wairen (the “College™) as of, and for
the fiscal years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, and the related notes to the financial statements, which
collectively comprise the College’s basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated
January 21, 2022,

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the College’s internal control
over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the-
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the College’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not
express an opinion on the effectiveness of the College’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management
or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the College’s
financial statements will not be prevented or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant
deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a
material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of the internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses
or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in
internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that
have not been identified.



The Honorable Chairman and

Members of the Board of Trustees
Warren County Community College
Page 2

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the College’s financial statements are free of
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an
objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed
no instances of noncompliasice or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing
Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and
the result of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the College’s internal control
or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government
Auditing Standards in considering the College’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this
communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Mount Arlington, New Jersey /\}M w a LLP

January 21, 2022
NISIVOCCIA LLP
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Report on Compliance For Each Major Federal and State Program:
Report on Internal Contro]l Over Compliance

Independent Auditors’ Report

The Honorable Chairman and
Members of the Board of Trustees

Warren County Community College

‘Washington, New Jersey

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal and State Program

We have audited the Warren County Community College (the "College’s") compliance with the types of
compliance requirements described in the OMB Compliance Supplement and the New Jersey State Aid/
Grant Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of the College’s major
federal and state programs for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021. The College’s major federal and state
programs are identified in the summary of auditors' results section of the accompanying schedule of findings
and questioned costs.

Management’s Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with federal and state statutes, regulations, and the terms and
conditions its federal and state awards applicable (o its federal and state programs.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the College’s major federal and state
programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our
audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by
the Comptroller General of the United States; the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal
Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cosi Principles, and Audit Requiremenis for
Federal Awards (“Uniform Guidance”) and New Jersey’s OMB Circular 15-08, Single Audit Policy for
Recipients of Federal Grants, State Grants, and State Aid. Those standards, the Uniform Guidance and New
Jersey’s OMB Circular 15-08 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a
direct and material effect on a major federal or state program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a
test basis, evidence about the College’s compliance with those requirements and performing such other
procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal
and state program. However, our audit does not provide a legal delermination of the College’s compliance.

N I S IVO C C [A 200 Valley Road, Sulte 300
. Mt. Arlington, NJ 07856
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Opinion on Each Major Federal and State Program

In our opinion, the College complied, in ali material respects, with the types of compliance requirements
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal and state programs
for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021,

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of the College is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over
compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing our
audit of compliance, we considered the College’s internal control over compliance with the types of
requirements that could have a direct and materia] effect on each major federal and state program to
determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on compliance for each major federal and state program and to test and report on internal control
over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance and NJOMB 15-08, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the cffeetiveness of internal control over compliance, Accordingly, we do not
express an opinion on the effectiveness of the College’s internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over complionce exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement. of a
federal or state program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a
deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a
reasonable possihility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal or
state program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in
internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over
compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal or state program that is less severe than a
material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those
charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However,
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing
of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform
Guidance or NJOMB 15-08. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

Mount Arlington, New Jersey /\J ANV LA L[_P

January 21, 2022

NISIVOCCIA LLP
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WARREN COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE
NOTES TO THE SCHEDULES OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AND STATE AWARDS
FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

Note 1: Basis of Presentation

The accompanying schedules of expenditures of federal and state awards present the activity of fedesal and
state award programs of the Warren County Community College (the “College™) under programs of the
federal and state governments for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021. The information in these schedules is
presented in accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (“Uniform
Guidance”) and New Jersey's OMB Circular 15-08, Single Audit Policy for Recipients of Federal Grants,
State Grants and State Aid. Because the schedules present only a selected portion of the operations of the
College, they are not intended to and do not present the financial position, changes in net position or cash
flows of the College.

Note 2: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies:

Expenditures reported on the accompanying schedules of expenditures of federal and state awards are
reported on the accrual basis of accounting. This basis of accounting is described in Notc 1 to the College’s
basic financial statements. Such expenditures are recognized following the cost principles contained in the
Uniform Guidance, wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowed or are limited as to reimbursement.
Negative amounts, if any, shown on the Schedules represents adjustments or credits made in the normal
course of business to amounts reports as expenditures in prior years.

Note 3: Indirect Cost Rate

The College has not elected to use the 10 percent de minimis indirect cost rate as allowed under the Uniform
Guidance.

Note 4: Relationship to Basic Financial Statements

There is an adjustment needed to reconcile the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and State Awards to the
basic financial statements. The adjustment for federal awards is $1,018,316 and the adjustment for state
awards is (82,046,660). The adjustment is neccssary because the College must reflect the entire drawdown
amounts on the Schedules of Expenditures of Federal and State Awards. In the basic financial statemens,
the College is only reflecting the revenue and expenses pertaining to the College and is not accounting for
awards that pass through the College and are refunded to the students.

Note 5: Relationship 1o Federal and State Financial Reports

Amounts reported in the accompanying schedules agree with the amounts reported in the related federal and
state financial reports.



WARREN COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

Summary of Auditors' Resuits:

The Independent Auditors’ Report expresses an unmodified opinion on the financial statements of the
College.

There were no material weaknesses or significant deficiencies disclosed during the audit of the financial
statements as reported in the Independent Auditors’ Report on Internal Control Over Financial
Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matiers Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed
in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards.

No instances of noncompliance material to the financial statements of the College which would be
required to be reported in accordance with Government Auditing Standards, were disclosed during the
audit.

There were no material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal control over major federal and
state programs disclosed during the audit as reported in the fndependent Auditors’ Report on Compliance
For Each Major Federal and State Program; Report on Internal Control Over Compliance.

The auditor’s report on compliance for each of the major federal and state programs for the College
expresses an uninodified opinion on all major federal and state prograins.

The audit did not disclose any audit findings which are required to be reported in accordance with New
Jersey’s OMB Circular 15-08 or 2 CFR 200.516(a) of the Uniform Guidance.

The College's programs tested as major federal and state programs for the current fiscal year consisted of
the following: '

State Grant/ Grant Award =~ Budgetary
CFDA Number Period Amount Expenditures
State:
State Support 10-100-082-
Opetrational Costs 2155-015 7/01/20-6/30/21  § 2,057,963 § 2,057,963
Federal:
Education Stabilization Fund:
COVID 19 - Higher Education:
Esnergency Relief Fund -
Student Aid Portion 84.425E 4/25/20-5/16/22 2,288,443 479,312
Emergency Relief Fund -
Institutional Portion 84.425F 5/6/20-5/16/22 3,383,720 647,912

COVID 19 - Governor's Emergency
Education Relief Fund - Education

Stabilization Fund 84.425C 7/1/20-6/30/21 189,001 189,001



WARREN COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021
(Continued)

Summary of Auditor’s Results: (Cont’d)

- The thresheld used for distinguishing between Type A and Type B programs for both federal and state
programs was $750,000.

~ The College was determined to be a "low-risk" auditee for both federal and state programs.

Findings and Questioned Costs ‘for Federal Awards:

- The audit did not disclose any findings or questioned costs for federal awards as defined in 2 CFR
200.516(a) of the Uniform Guidance.

Findings and Questioned Costs for State Awards:

- The audit did not disclose any findings or questioned costs for state awards as defined in 2 CFR
200.516(a) of the Uniform Guidance and New Jersey’s OMB Circular 15-08.



WARREN COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS
FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

Status of Prior Year Findings:

There were no findings or questioned costs noted during the audit of the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020.
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